
 

1 

 

 1960 Elgin Street 
 Oroville, CA 95966 
 530-533-2000 
 www.loapud.com 

 
 

Board of Directors 
Regular Meeting  

April 9, 2024 
2:00PM 

 

Materials related to an item on the open meeting agenda that are provided to the Board of 
Directors, including those provided to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet, are 
available on the District website.  
 
California Government Code section 54954.2(a)(1) requires the agenda include “information 
regarding how, to whom, and when a request for disability-related modification or 
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, may be made by a person with a disability 
who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting. An 
example of agenda language that would satisfy this requirement is: “Any persons requiring a 
disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in the public meeting can 
contact the District Secretary at 530-533-2000 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.”  
 
We invite you to join today’s scheduled meeting via Zoom by using your phone or computer to 
attend this meeting. Please call our District office at (530)533-2000 for assistance in participating 
in the teleconference.   

 
Dial in: 1-669-900-9128 

Meeting ID: 880 5808 0009 
Passcode: 927311 

 
To ensure that our meetings are as orderly as possible, and to enable public participation at the 
proper times during the meeting, we are asking that everyone take a moment to ensure your 
line stays muted until public comment is invited.  When it comes time for public comment, we 
will leave enough time for participants to unmute and speak to the entire group and our Board.  
Because attendees cannot see each other’s mute status, we will simply need to be patient as 
we wait in between comments and do our best not to speak over each other.  Please state your 
name for the record before sharing comments.  We are committed to keeping the public engaged  
and appreciate your help in making that happen. 

 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
1.1 Roll Call 
1.2 Flag Salute 
1.3 Moment of Silence 
1.4 Public Comment 

  

AGENDA 

http://www.loapud.com/


 

 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by 
one motion unless an item is removed.  Consent Agenda items will be read by title only. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Board or 
person in the audience request a specific item to be removed from the Consent Agenda 
to the Regular Agenda for separate discussion, prior to the time the Board votes on the 
motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  If any item(s) is removed from the Consent 
Agenda, the item(s) will be considered immediately following action on the Consent 
Agenda.  

 
2.1 Special Board Meeting Minutes of March 12, 2024 
2.2 Financial Reports for Month Ending March 31, 2024 
2.3 Claims Report for Month Ending March 31, 2024 

 
3. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA (IF ANY) 

 
4. CALIFORNIA COOPERATIVE LIQUID ASSETS SECURITIES SYSTEM (CLASS) 

 
Presentation by Mr. Jerry Legg regarding California CLASS and potential investment 
opportunities.  
 

5. REQUEST TO PURCHASE EQUIPMENT 
 
GM Goyer will present the quotation from Tomahawk Power for 1 each 3.6 HP Honda 
Vibratory Rammer Jumping Jack Tamper with Honda GRX120 Engine and 1 each 6.5 

HP Honda Vibratory Reversible Plate Compactor Tamper with GX200 Engine.   
.   
 

REPORTS AND CONSULTATIONS 
 

6. SC-OR COMMISSIONER’S REPORT 
 
 

7. BOARD MEMBERS’, MANAGER, AND STAFF COMMENTS 
 

• FIELD OPERATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT 

• MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 



         
 
 

Manager’s Report 
 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  David Goyer, General Manager 

Date:  April 9, 2024 

 

RE:  Item No. 1 – Call To Order 

   

  1.1 Roll call 
 
  1.2 Flag Salute 
 
  1.3 Moment of Silence 
   
  1.4 Public Comment 

 
 

      
   

  



         
 
 

Manager’s Report 
 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  David Goyer, General Manager 

Date:  April 9, 2024 

 

RE:  Item No. 2 – Consent Agenda 

 
 

Item No. 2.1 Board Meeting Minutes - Minutes from the March 12, 2024 Regular 
Board meeting are included for the Board’s review and approval. 
 
Item No. 2.2 Financial Reports – Cash Report and Income Statement through 
March 31, 2024 is attached for the Board’s review and approval.   
 
Item No. 2.3 Payment of Claims - The March 31, 2024 Claims report is attached for 
the Board’s review and approval. 
  
 
Attachments for each item included. 
 
Recommended Action:  
 
A motion to approve the minutes from the Special Board meeting of March 12, 2024 
and approve the Financial Reports and Payment of Claims from March 31, 2024 as 
presented.  
 
Roll call vote.  



 

1 
 

UNADOPTED	
LAKE	OROVILLE	AREA	PUBLIC	UTILITY	DISTRICT	

BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	REGULAR	MEETING	
MARCH	12,	2024	

	
CALL	TO	ORDER	
 

President Marciniak called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M.  Directors present were 
Fairbanks, Mastelotto, Salvucci, and Sharman.  General Manager (GM) Goyer, Engineer Knibb, 
Field Operations Supervisor (FOS) Victorino and Board Clerk (BC) Hamblin represented the 
District in person.   

	
SALUTE	TO	THE	FLAG		

 
Director Fairbanks led the meeting with the salute to the flag.    
 

MOMENT	OF	SILENCE	
	
	 President Marciniak requested a moment of silence. 
 
PUBLIC	COMMENT	
	  
 No Public Comment. 
 
CONSENT	AGENDA 	

 
The Board reviewed the minutes of the Special Meeting of February 20, 2024, the 

financial Reports and the Claims List for month ending February 29, 2024.  After discussion, 
it was moved by Director Mastelotto and seconded by Director Salvucci that the items on the 
consent agenda be approved as presented.  The motion passed with the following roll call 
vote:  

 
Ayes: Directors Fairbanks, Marciniak, Mastelotto, Salvucci, and Sharman.  

	
BARTLE	WELLS	ASSOCIATES	2024	DISTRICT	RATE	STUDY	
  

 Mr. Michael DeGroot presented the 2024 District Rate Study prepared by Bartle 
Wells Associates.  After discussion, it was moved by Director Salvucci and seconded by 
Director Sharman to adopt the Bartle Wells Associates 2024 District Rate Study as presented. 
The motion passed with the following roll call vote:  
 

Ayes: Directors Fairbanks, Marciniak, Mastelotto, Salvucci, and Sharman.  
  



 

2 
 

SELECTION	OF	RATE	INCREASE	SCHEDULE 
 
 GM Goyer presented the proposed scenarios for the rate increase and proposed 
schedules for the Prop 218 implementation. The rate schedule will be incorporated into the 
Notice of Sewer Rate Increase that will be presented in the future for Board approval. After 
discussion, it was moved by Director Salvucci and seconded by Director Sharman to adopt 
and approve the proposed LOAPUD Rate Scenario #2 and Implementation Schedule #1 to 
incorporate into the Notice of Sewer Rate Increase. The motion passed with the following 
roll call vote:  

 
Ayes: Directors Fairbanks, Marciniak, Mastelotto, Salvucci, and Sharman.  

 
MISSION	ESPERANZA	PROJECT 
 
 GM Goyer presented a plan to work with the City of Oroville to assist in the planning 
and construction for the Mission Esperanza Project.  The City and the District will work in 
cooperation to gain a new right of way for the existing infrastructure to improve 
serviceability to customers in the area.  The City of Oroville and the District agree to pay 50% 
each of the cost to complete the project.   After discussion, it was moved by Director 
Mastelotto and seconded by Director Salvucci to approve the cooperative project with the 
City of Oroville and Mission Esparanza Project as presented. The motion passed with the 
following roll call vote:  

 
Ayes: Directors Fairbanks, Marciniak, Mastelotto, Salvucci, and Sharman.  

 
REQUEST	TO	AUTHORIZE	HIRING	AT	AN	ADVANCED	STEP	IN	SALARY	RANGE	
	 	
	 GM Goyer requested authorization from the Board to hire a Utility Worker I or II and 
an Operator at an advanced step in salary range to a obtain a qualified candidate. After 
discussion, it was moved by Director Mastelotto and seconded by Director Salvucci to 
approve the request to hire a Utility Worker I or II and an Operator at a step salary range 
necessary to obtain a qualified applicant. The motion passed with the following roll call vote:  

 
Ayes: Directors Fairbanks, Marciniak, Mastelotto, Salvucci, and Sharman.  

 
AMENDMENT	TO	SECTIONS	3,	5,	&	6	OF	THE	DISTRICT’S	RULES	AND	REGULATIONS.		
	 	
	 GM Goyer presented a request to amend Sections 3, 5, & 6 of the District’s Rules and 
Regulations regarding future acceptance of lower laterals. The amendment would eliminate 
any future acceptance of lower laterals into the District.   After discussion, it was moved by 
Director Mastelotto and seconded by Director Marciniak to approve the amendment to 
Sections 3, 5, & 6 of the District’s Rules and Regulations. The motion passed with the 
following roll call vote:  

 
Ayes: Directors Fairbanks, Marciniak, Mastelotto, Salvucci, and Sharman.  

  



 

3 
 

 
SC‐OR	COMMISSIONERS’	REPORT	
	
 Director Salvucci reported the influent pump station is fully functional but has only 
been run for testing.  Full operation will begin after April 15th when Tesco is scheduled to 
validate installation for warranty purposes.  

BOARD	MEMBERS’,	MANAGER,	AND	STAFF	REPORTS	

FOS	Victorino	presented	the	Field	Operations	Report	
  

o Reported that we had NO SSO’s for February 2024. 
o Reported on the effect the power outages had on the lift stations.  
o Reported the afterhours emergency at Hanging Tree lift station. 
o Reported that we had a faulty circuit board at the L1 lift station. 
o Reported on the traffic accident that destroyed the fencing at the Mooretown lift 

station.   
GM	Goyer	presented	the	Manager’s	Report	

 
o 3515 Myers clean up and disposal of junk equipment and debris. 
o Updated the Board on the status of River Ranch, Lincoln Family Apartment and A-

Line projects. 
o Reported the Sewer Main extension at 4071 Hildale was moving forward. 

 
ADJOURNMENT		
	

There being no further business to come before the Board the meeting was adjourned 
at 3:33 P.M.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kelly Hamblin, 
Clerk of the Board 
 

















         
 
 

Manager’s Report 
 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  David Goyer, General Manager 

Date:  April 9, 2024 

 

RE:  Item No. 3 – Items Removed From Consent Agenda  

  



Manager’s Report 

To: Board of Directors 

From:  David Goyer, General Manager 

Date: April 9, 2024 

RE: Item No. 4 - California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (CLASS) 

Presentation 

Mr. Jerry Legg will give a presentation to the Board regarding the investment opportunities 
with the California CLASS program. 

Attachments included. 

Recommended Action: Discussion and possible direction to staff. 



T (877) 930-5213  | F (877) 930-5214 | www.californiaclass.com | clientservices@californiaclass.com  

California CLASS Investment Income Earned

As of Date Time $100K $1M $10M

Feb 1 - Feb 29  1 month $431 $4,310 $43,100

Sep 1 - Feb 29  6 months $2,773 $27,731 $277,308

Mar 1 - Feb 29  12 months $5,469 $54,692 $546,922

California CLASS Prime
Daily Yields as of Month-End 

Month Year Month-End Yield

February 2024 5.4375%

January 2024 5.4710%

December 2023 5.5508%

November 2023 5.5691%

October 2023 5.5540%

September 2023 5.5193%

August 2023 5.4663%

July 2023 5.4443%

June 2023 5.2651%

May 2023 5.1880%

April 2023 5.0425%

March 2023 4.9771%

Investing with California CLASS Prime could mean more for your local community.

Use the California CLASS Prime investment calculator to see just how much you could have earned.

Invest  with California CLASS Prime!

Michigan Cooperat ive Liquid Asset  Securit ies Syst em  

Source: Public Trust Advisors® Data unaudited. Values presented   
may not add up precisely to absolute figures due to rounding. 
Performance   results for California CLASS are shown net of all 
fees and expenses and reflect the reinvestment of dividends and 
other earnings. Many factors affect performance including changes 
in market condit ions and interest rates and in response to other 
economic, polit ical, or financial developments. Investment   
involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance 
can be   given that the performance object ives of a given strategy 
will be achieved. California CLASS is not a bank. An investment in 
California   CLASS is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal 
Deposit  Insurance Corporat ion or any other government agency. 
Although the California CLASS Prime Fund seeks to preserve the 
value of your investment at $1.00 per share, it  cannot guarantee it  
will do so. Please review the California CLASS Prime Fund 
Information Statement before invest ing. Past  performance is no 
guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or investment  
decision may incur losses. Please visit    
www.californiaclass.com/rates-disclaimer for more information.

Amount  Invest ed 

St ar t  Dat e 

End Dat e 

February 1, 2024

February 29, 2024

$1,000,000

Months listed are in the years 2023/2024  

California Cooperat ive Liquid Assets Securit ies System 

For more information on both historical yields        

and annualized performance, visit  

www.californiaclass.com/rate                                        

or scan the below QR code:

http://www.colotrust.com
mailto:clientservices@colotrust.com
mailto:clientservices@colotrust.com






 California CLASS Participant List February 2024 
 
Counties

El Dorado County Lake County
Sonoma County Treasurer

Municipalities

City of Artesia City of Beaumont
City of Brentwood City of Farmersville
City of Folsom City of Fowler
City of Fullerton City of Hemet
City of Kingsburg City of Lancaster
City of Moreno Valley City of Morgan Hill
City of Oroville City of Porterville
City of Santa Ana City of Shafter
City of Wasco City of Williams
Town of Fort Jones Town of Paradise

Other

California CLASS Enhanced Cash California Special Districts Association
CSDA Finance Corporation League of California Cities
Public Agencies Self-Insurance System Special District Leadership Foundation
Special District Risk Management Authority Tri-County Water Authority

Special Districts

Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District Alpine Fire Protection District
Altadena Library District Anderson Springs Community Service District
Artesia Cemetery District Atwell Island Water District
Banning Library District Beaumont Library District
Bell Canyon Community Services District Bighorn - Desert View Water Agency
Bolinas Fire Protection District Bonita Sunnyside Fire Protection District
Cabazon Water District Camarillo Health Care District
Castroville Cemetery District Central Fire District of Santa Cruz County
Channel Islands Beach Community Services Distict Chester Public Utility District
Chico Area Recreation & Park District Chino Basin Water Conservation District
Chino Basin Watermaster Clovis Veterans Memorial District

Page No. 1



 California CLASS Participant List February 2024 
 
Coachella Valley Resources Conversation District Coalinga - Huron Recreation & Parks District
Coastside Fire Protection District Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District
Copper Valley Community Services District Corcoran Irrigation District
Corning Healthcare District Costa Mesa Sanitary District
Crescenta Valley Water District Del Puerto Health Care District
Delano Mosquito Abatement District Desert Recreation District
Durham Irrigation District East Orange County Water District
Emerald Bay Service District Fallbrook Regional Health District
Georgetown Divide P.U.D. Glenn County Resource Conservation District
Gold Mountain Community Services District Goleta Sanitary District
Groveland Community Services District Helendale Community Services District
Herlong Public Utility District Hilmar County Water District
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Humboldt Community Services District
Idyllwild Water District Igo Ono Community Services District
Indian Valley Community Services District Ironhouse Sanitary District
Kensington Police Protection and Community Services 
District

Kenwood Fire Protection District

Keyes Community Services District La Puente Valley County Water District
Lakeside Fire Protection District Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Leucadia Wastewater District Livermore Area Recreation and Park District
Los Alamos Cemetery District Madera Irrigation District
Mariana Ranchos County Water District Marina Coast Water District
Mark Twain Health Care District McKinleyville Community Services District
Mendocino Coast Recreation and Park District Mendocino County Waterworks District II
Mission Hills Community Services District Mojave Water Agency
Murphy's Sanitary District North County Fire Protection District, San Diego County
North Humboldt Recreation and Park District North of River Sanitary District No. 1
Oceano Community Services District Olympic Valley Public Service District
Orange County Cemetery District Oxnard Harbor District
Palos Verdes Library District Paradise Irrigation District
Paradise Recreation & Park District Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District
Pico Water District Pine Grove Community Service District
Pleasant Valley County Water District Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District
Rainbow Municipal Water District Rancho Murieta Community Services District

Page No. 2



 California CLASS Participant List February 2024 
 
Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District Resource Conservation District of Greater San Diego 

County
Rim of the World Recreation and  Park District San Antonio Basin Water District
San Diego County Citrus Pest Control District San Gabriel Valley Mosquito and Vector Control District
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
San Simeon Community Services District Santa Cruz Port District
Santa Maria Public Airport District Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District
Sierra Resource Conservation District South Placer M.U.D.
Stockton East Water District Tahoe - Truckee Sanitation Agency
Tahoe City Public Utility District Temecula Public Cemetery District
Templeton Community Services District Town of Discovery Bay - Community Services District
Trabuco Canyon Water District Tracy Rural County Fire Protection District
Truckee Donner Recreation and Park District Truckee Sanitary District
Truckee Tahoe Airport District Turner Island Water District
Twentynine Palms Water District Union Public Utility District
Vandenberg Village Community Services District Vista Fire Protection District
Wallace Community Services District Weott Community Services District
West Basin Municipal Water District West County Wastewater District
Western Shasta Resource Conservation District Williams Fire Protection Authority
Yuima Municipal Water District

Total Participants: 156

Disclaimer: This participant list is being made public as a service to our participant base. The listed participants are 
active as of the end of the month.

Page No. 3



Manager’s Report 

To: Board of Directors 

From:  David Goyer, General Manager 

Date: April 9, 2024 

RE: Item No.  5 - Request to Purchase Equipment 

GM Goyer will present the quotation from Tomahawk Power for 1 each 3.6 HP 
Honda Vibratory Rammer Jumping Jack Tamper with Honda GRX120 Engine and 1 
each 6.5 HP Honda Vibratory Reversible Plate Compactor Tamper with GX200 
Engine.   

Quotation Included – (Does not include sales tax.) 

Recommended Action:  A motion to approve the purchase of 1 each 3.6 HP Honda 
Vibratory Rammer Jumping Jack Tamper with Honda GRX120 Engine and 1 each 
6.5 HP Honda Vibratory Reversible Plate Compactor Tamper with GX200 Engine in 
an amount not to exceed $5,731.00. 

Roll call vote. 



Tomahawk Power LLC Delivered To:
POWER YOUR WORLD  8925 Carroll Way C Freight included in Quote
1/9/2024 San Diego, CA 92121

T: (866) 577-4476      

Tomahawk Power Model
 2023 Unit 

Price
QTY Total Pricing 

TR68H + WHEELS $2,559.99 1 $2,559.99

TPC170H $2,649.99 1 $2,649.99

Total $5,209.98

Equipment has 1 year total warranty. For unlisted items or more information, call Ian, at (619) 983-7828 or email ian@tomahawk-power.com

Tomahawk Power Quote

Description 2023 MSRP

3.6HP Honda Vibratory Rammer Jumping Jack Tamper with Honda 
GXR120 Engine Impact Force 3,550

$2,999.99

$2,999.99

6.5 HP Honda Vibratory Reversible Plate Compactor Tamper with 
GX200 Engine



         
 
 

Manager’s Report 
 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  David Goyer, General Manager 

Date:  April 9, 2024 

 

RE:   Item No. 6 – SC-OR Report 

 
Please see attached March 2024 minutes and flow reports for SC-OR (if available). 
 
 
Attachments included. 
 
 
Discussion only. 

  





Manager’s Report 

To: Board of Directors 

From:  David Goyer, General Manager 

Date: April 9, 2024 

RE: Item No. 7 – Board Members’, Manager, and Staff Comments. 

7.1 Field Operations Activity Report 

The March 2024 Field Operations Activity Report is included for your review and 
discussion.   

Information only, no action to be taken. 

7.2 General Manger’s Report 

Progress reports: 

o Developer’s agreement Lincoln Family Apartments. Update only.
o MOU for the Mission Esperanza Project. Update only.
o 3520 Spencer Ave. Purchase of the property.
o Hildale Ave. Mainline extension.
o River Ranch Subdivision.

Information only, no action to be taken. 



 Page 1 of 2  

 

FIELD OPERATIONS ACTIVITY REPORT                              

MARCH 2024 
 

 

Meetings and Compliance  

• California State Water Resource Control Board: The District reported “ZERO” 

Sanitary Sewer Overflows for the month of March 2024 and Annual Facility 

Reporting started for April 1, 2024 deadline submission.  

• Daily/Weekly/Monthly compliance and safety inspections at all District 

facilities including equipment and vehicles.  

• Special District Risk Management Authority: Various on-line safety topics. 

• Butte County Air Quality Management District: Emergency generators at all 

lift stations inspected for compliance and passed. 

 

General Updates 

• Oroville Rescue Mission Pallet Shelter: The Field Operations Crew began the 

lowering of the main line for this project. The line is being lowered from +/- 4 

ft in depth to 10 ft to help facilitate grading issues. The 6” clay pipe is being 

upsized to 8” SDR-35 sewer pipe with new lower laterals and District clean-

outs for all existing connections (5 in total) and one new additional connection 

for the temporary shower facilities.       

   

New Permits and Connections, Estimates, Inquiries or Termination   

• 205 Lariat Loop: New single family dwelling lateral permit. 

• 2217 Wyandotte: Repair/Replace lateral permit. 

• 4763 Lincoln Blvd:  Lateral reconnection inquiry.       

  

Lines Cleaned 

• 4135 LF Cleaned with the Eco 900 Combo-Vac Truck. 

 

CCTV Work 

• No CCTV work to report.    

  

Maintenance, Repairs and Misc 

• General grounds maintenance at District office and Field Operations Building 

(formerly the El Medio Fire Station). 

• Peterbilt Dump Truck- Batteries replaced. 

• Shop storage cabinets moved to the Field Operations Building. 

• District Board Room: Fluorescent light bulbs replaced. 

• 3300lbs of scrap iron taken to recycling and 2500lbs of old clay pipe taken to 

the Neal Road Landfill for disposal.  

• E-waste and old fluorescent light bulbs disposed of at proper facilities.  

• Old manhole parts moved and reorganized in vacant lot. 



 Page 2 of 2  

 

• Accumulated brush pile from easements burned off.   

• Las Plumas L/S: Both pumps de-ragged of debris. 

• Bidwell Canyon L3 L/S: Both pumps de-ragged of debris. 

• Materials hauled to the Oroville Rescue Mission Pallet Shelter jobsite. 

   

Primary System Service Calls/O.T. Call Outs   

• Service Calls- 3: Lateral issues on property, directed to call a plumbing 

contractor. 

• O.T. Call Outs- Zero to report.  

 

Villa Verona Service Calls/O.T. Call Outs 

• Service Calls- 5: All tanks serviced and/or pumped.   

• O.T. Call Outs- 3: All tanks serviced and/or pumped.   

 

Fuel Consumption  

• Gasoline: 338.6gals (Last Mo. 372.05gals)  

• Diesel: 101.8gals (Last Mo. 472.5gals) 

 
 

 

 

gals = gallons 

LF = Linear Feet 

Ft = Feet 

L/S = Lift Station 

I&I = Inflow & Infiltration 

   O.T. = Overtime 

 

 

                                                                                 Prepared By: 

Vince Victorino 

Field Operations Supervisor 

 

 



         
 
 

Manager’s Report 
 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  David Goyer, General Manager 

Date:  April 9, 2024 

 

RE:   Item No. 8 – Future Agenda Items 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 


	03.24 - California CLASS Prime Rate Sheet.pdf
	03.24 - California CLASS Prime Rate Sheet
	Page 1


	California CLASS Features and Benefits .pdf
	11.23 - California CLASS Features and Benefits 
	Page 1
	Page 2





